
 
 

HARROW ADMISSIONS FORUM  
 

WEDNESDAY 21 OCTOBER 2009 
6.15 PM  

 
PANEL AGENDA (ADVISORY AND CONSULTATIVE) 

 
COMMITTEE ROOMS 1 & 2,  
HARROW CIVIC CENTRE 

 
 

  MEMBERSHIP    (Quorum 1 representative from 3 Groups) 
 
  Chairman: 

 
Reverend P Reece   

 
Councillors: 

 
 Mrs Anjana Patel (VC) 
 
 

Bill Stephenson 
 

  
 

  Community School Representatives: 
 
  Governor 
  (Vacancy) 

Primary 
Sue Jones 

Secondary 
Janice Howkins 

 
  Roman Catholic School Representative: Church of England School Representative:   
  Mr M Murphy Mrs S Hinton 
 
  Jewish School Representative: Krishna Avanti Primary School: 
  Mrs D Palman (Vacancy) 
 
  Church of England Diocese Representative: Catholic Schools Diocese Representative: 
  Rev P Reece (CH) Mr M Pittendreigh 
   
  United Synagogue Representative: I-Foundation Representative: 
  Vacancy)   Dr Kamlesh Bahl 
 

Primary Elected Parent Governor 
Representative: 

Secondary Elected Parent Governor 
Representative: 

  Mrs D Speel Mr R Chauhan   
 

Harrow Council for Racial Equality 
Representative: 

Early Years Development Partnership 
Representative: 

  Julia Smith Ms H Tucker 
 

Children’s Services Representative:  
  (Vacancy) 
 

 
 

Issued by the Democratic Services Section, 
Legal and Governance Services Department  

 
Contact:  Michael Gaughan, Acting Democratic Services Officer 
Tel:  020 8424 1323    E-mail:  michael.gaughan@harrow.gov.uk 

 



 

 

 
  HARROW COUNCIL 

 
HARROW ADMISSIONS FORUM  
 
WEDNESDAY 21 OCTOBER 2009 
 

 
 

  AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. Attendance by Reserve Members:    
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve 

Members. 
 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the 

meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that 

the Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives 

after the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member 
can only act as a Member from the start of the next item of business 
on the agenda after his/her arrival. 

 
2. Declarations of Interest:    
 To receive declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, arising from 

business to be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Committee, Sub Committee, Panel or Forum; 
(b) all other Members present in any part of the room or chamber. 
 

3. Minutes:  (Pages 1 - 8) Enc. 
 That the minutes of the special and the ordinary meetings held on 14 July 

2009 be taken as read and signed as a correct record. 
 

4. Public Questions:    
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents or organisations under the 

provisions of Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 16 
(Part 4E of the Constitution). 
 

5. Petitions:    
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors 

under the provisions of Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure 
Rule 14 (Part 4E of the Constitution). 
 

6. Deputations:    
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Advisory Panel and 

Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4E of the Constitution). 
 

7. Changes to Requirement for Proof of Address:  (Pages 9 - 12) Enc. 
 Report of the Director of Schools and Children’s Development. 

 



 

 

8. Flexible Entry to Reception:  (Pages 13 - 18) Enc. 
 Report of the Director of Schools and Children’s Development. 

 
9. INFORMATION REPORT - Harrow Admission Forum Working Party on 

Nursery Admissions:  (Pages 19 - 22) 
Enc. 

 Report of the Director of Schools and Children’s Development. 
 

10. INFORMATION REPORT - Admissions Policy and Location of School 
Gate:  (Pages 23 - 26) 

Enc. 

 Report of the Director of Legal and Governance Services. 
 

11. INFORMATION REPORT - New Requirement to Co-Ordinate Primary and 
In-Year Admissions:  (Pages 27 - 30) 

Enc. 

 Report of the Director of Schools and Children’s Development. 
 

12. INFORMATION REPORT - Applicants Not Offered Any of Their Four 
Preferred Schools for September 2009:  (Pages 31 - 46) 

Enc. 

 Report of the Director of Schools and Children’s Development. 
 
 

  AGENDA - PART II - NIL   
 



This page is intentionally left blank



ADVISORY AND CONSULTATIVE  ACHAF 36   

HARROW ADMISSIONS FORUM (SPECIAL) 14 JULY 2009 

Chairman: * Reverend P Reece 

Councillors: * Mrs Anjana Patel 
* Bill Stephenson 

Community School 
Representatives: 

 Governor

 (Vacancy) 

 Primary

* Sue Jones 

 Secondary

 Janice Howkins 

Jewish School Representative: * Mrs D Palman 

Roman Catholic School 
Representative: 

* Mike Murphy 

Church of England School 
Representative: 

* Mrs S Hinton 

Hindu School Representative:  (Vacancy) 

Church of England Diocese 
Representative: 

* Reverend P Reece 

Catholic Schools Diocese 
Representative: 

 Mr Mike Pittendreigh  

Board of Deputies British Jews 
Representative: 

 (Vacancy) 

Primary Elected Parent 
Governor Representative: 

* Mrs D Speel  

Secondary Elected Parent 
Governor Representative: 

* Mr R Chauhan 

I-Foundation Representative:  (Vacancy) 

Harrow Council for Racial 
Equality Representative: 

 Julia Smith 

Early Years Development 
Partnership Representative: 

* Helena Tucker 

Children’s Services 
Representative: 

 (Vacancy) 

* Denotes Member present 

PART I - RECOMMENDATIONS - NIL 

PART II - MINUTES 

110. Election of Chairman:

RESOLVED:  That Reverend Paul Reece be appointed Chairman of the Forum for a 
period of one year. 

[Note: The School Admissions (Local Authority Reports and Admissions Forums) 
(England) Regulations 2008 state that the Chairman shall hold office until the next 
meeting which falls after the date which is a year after the meeting at which the 
Chairman was elected, and on ceasing to hold office shall be eligible for re-election]. 

111. Attendance by Alternate Members:

RESOLVED:  To note that there were no Alternate Members in attendance at this 
meeting. 

Agenda Item 3
Pages 1 to 8

1



ACHAF 37  ADVISORY AND CONSULTATIVE 

112. Declarations of Interest:

RESOLVED:  To note that there were no declarations of interests made by Members in 
relation to the business to be transacted at this meeting. 

113. Minutes:

RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meeting held on 23 February 2009 be deferred 
until the next Ordinary Meeting of the Forum. 

114. Deputations:

RESOLVED:  To note that no deputations were received at this meeting under the 
provisions of Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4E of 
the Constitution). 

115. Membership of the Harrow Admissions Forum:
An officer introduced a joint report of the Director of Legal and Governance Services 
and the Director of Schools and Children’s Development, which advised of the need to 
amend the membership of the Harrow Admissions Forum, in the light of new 
Regulations and new School Admissions Code which had come into force on 10 
February 2009. 

RESOLVED:  That the new membership of the Harrow Admissions Forum, as set out 
at paragraph 4 of the Director’s report, be agreed, as follows: 

- 3 Community School representatives (1 governor, 1 primary, 1 secondary); 

- 4 Voluntary Aided School representatives (1 each from the Kirshna Avanti 
Primary School, Moriah Jewish Day School, a Roman Catholic school and a 
Church of England school); 

- 1 representative each of the Church of England Diocese, the Roman Catholic 
Church Diocese, and the Jewish and Hindu faiths; 

- 2 parent governor representatives; 

- 2 Councillors; 

- 1 representative of Harrow Commission for Racial Equality; 

- 1 early years development partnership representative; 

- 1 Children’s Services representative. 

(Note:  The meeting having commenced at 6.00 pm, closed at 6.15 pm) 

(Signed) REVEREND P REECE 
Chairman 

2



ADVISORY AND CONSULTATIVE   ACHAF 38 

HARROW ADMISSIONS FORUM  14 JULY 2009 

Chairman: * Reverend P Reece 

Councillors: * Mrs Anjana Patel 
* Bill Stephenson 

Community School 
Representatives: 

 Governor

 (Vacancy) 

 Primary

* Sue Jones 

 Secondary

 Janice Howkins 

Jewish School Representative: * Mrs D Palman 

Roman Catholic School 
Representative: 

* Mike Murphy 

Church of England School 
Representative: 

* Mrs S Hinton 

Hindu School Representative:    (Vacancy) 

Church of England Diocese 
Representative: 

* Reverend P Reece 

Catholic Schools Diocese 
Representative: 

 Mr Mike Pittendreigh 

Board of Deputies British Jews 
Representative: 

   (Vacancy) 

Primary Elected Parent 
Governor Representative: 

* Mrs D Speel  

Secondary Elected Parent 
Governor Representative: 

* Mr R Chauhan 

I-Foundation Representative:    (Vacancy) 

Harrow Council for Racial 
Equality Representative: 

 Julia Smith 

Early Years Development 
Partnership Representative: 

* Helena Tucker 

Children’s Services 
Representative: 

 (Vacancy) 

* Denotes Member present 

PART I - RECOMMENDATIONS - NIL 

PART II - MINUTES 

116. Attendance by Alternate Members:

RESOLVED:  To note that there were no Alternate Members in attendance at this 
meeting. 

117. Declarations of Interest:

RESOLVED:  To note that there were no declarations of interests made by Members in 
relation to the business to be transacted at this meeting. 

118. Minutes:

RESOLVED:  That (1) the minutes of the meeting held on 23 February 2009 be taken 
as read and signed as a correct record; 

(2)  the minutes of Special Meeting held on the 14 July 2009 be deferred until the next 
meeting of the Forum. 

3



ACHAF 39  ADVISORY AND CONSULTATIVE 

119. Election of Vice-Chairman:

RESOLVED:  That Councillor Anjana Patel be appointed Vice-Chairman of the Forum 
for a period of one year. 

[Note:  The School Admissions (Local Authority Reports and Admissions Forums) 
(England) Regulations 2008 state that the Chairman and Vice-Chairman shall hold 
office until the next meeting which falls after the date which is a year after the meeting 
at which they were elected, and on ceasing to hold office shall be eligible for 
re-election]. 

120. Public Questions:

RESOLVED:  To note that no public questions were received at this meeting under the 
provisions of Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 16 (Part 4E of 
the Constitution). 

121. Petitions:

RESOLVED:  To note that no petitions were received at this meeting under the 
provisions of Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 17 (Part 4E of 
the Constitution). 

122. Deputations:

RESOLVED:  To note that no deputations were received at this meeting under the 
provisions of Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4E of 
the Constitution). 

123. Report to the Office of the Schools Adjudicator:
An officer introduced a report of the Director of Schools and Children’s Development, 
which included the information on the statutory requirement to annually to the Office of 
the Schools Adjudicator (OSA) on how well the admission arrangements in Harrow 
are working.  The information, which formed the basis of the annual report from the 
OSA to the Secretary of State, also included information on how fair access protocol 
was working locally and how school places were assigned in a fair and timely fashion. 

In a response to questions, an officer advised that: 

- due to time constraints the Forum did not receive copies of the report before it 
was submitted to the OSA.  The Forum could submit its own report to the OSA 
if it felt that the system was not working; 

- officers would circulate a draft copy of the report to Members of the Forum in 
future, which may require a special meeting of the Forum prior to its 
submission to the OSA.. 

RESOLVED:  That (1) the report be noted; 

(2)  in future, the Director of Schools and Children’s Development circulate a draft copy 
of the report to the Office of the Schools Adjudicator (OSA) to all members of the 
Forum and that, time permitting, it also be submitted to a meeting of the Forum prior to 
the report being dispatched to the OSA. 

124. Primary and Secondary Guides 2010/2011:
An officer introduced a report of the Director of Schools and Children’s Development, 
which advised of the work in progress on the Primary and Secondary Guides to 
Schools in Harrow 2010/2011.  The booklets would be available for parents from 
1 September 2009 along with application forms for entry into reception in September 
2009 and 11+ and 12+ transfer to High Schools in September 2010.  The booklets had 
been updated to include information on the change to the age of transfer and changes 
to the schools admission arrangements.  Draft copies of the booklets were sent to 
Harrow schools in the week commencing 6 July 2009 for proof reading.  In previous 
years schools only received the relevant sections of the booklets for editorial 
comments.  This year schools were sent the entire booklet and were asked for any 
general comments. 

An officer reported that draft copies had been circulated to the Admissions Forum 
Sub-Group for comment but that it had only made few remarks.  

4



ADVISORY AND CONSULTATIVE   ACHAF 40 

A member suggested that the information relating to the Moriah Jewish Day School 
might need amending, pending the outcome of a recent court case.  An officer advised 
that the deadline for changes may not be met, and that a caveat to the information 
provided in the booklet could be included to note that the information provided was 
accurate at the time of publishing and  that, for the most up-to-date policy, parents 
should contact the schools.  

A member suggested that including information on the role of school’s governors would 
help explain their involvement, and might also encourage more people to take up the 
position.  Members agreed that, although a source of information about governors 
needed to be provided, the Primary and Secondary Guides were not suitable 
documents to contain such information, as governors took no part in the admissions 
process.  The Chairman added that the booklets recommended contacting the 
individual schools for their relevant prospectus, where information about governors 
could be provided.  

A member welcomed the inclusion of flowcharts and suggested that the flowchart in the 
Guide to High Schools be brought forward to page 5, as in the Guide to Primary 
Schools.  The Chairman also extended his thanks on behalf of the Forum to the 
Admissions Service for all the work they had undertaken in producing the booklets.  

RESOLVED:  That (1) the report be noted; 

(2)  the amendments suggested by members be incorporated in the final versions of 
the Primary and Secondary Schools Guides 2010/2011; 

(3)  further comments from members of the forum be submitted to officers by no later 
than Wednesday 22 July 2009. 

125. Confirmation of Addresses:
An officer introduced a report of the Director of Schools and Children’s Development, 
which advised the Forum on the current arrangements to confirm addresses for school 
places.  The need to have a robust checking procedure had arisen following complaints 
from parents over false applications and from parents who had been unsuccessful in 
their applications.  They had asked that all addresses be verified.  The same officer 
commented that whatever procedures were put in place, if parents were determined to 
fabricate information, it would be very difficult to eradicate all fraudulent applications.  

The primary document used for confirmation of address was a copy of the current 
Council Tax bill.  In cases where tenants did not pay Council Tax, a tenancy agreement 
sufficed, although private agreements would not be appropriate.  If further clarification 
was required, the electoral register would be checked, a driving licence requested or 
certain information sought from the Council’s Housing Service.  

RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 

126. Rising 5, 11+ and 12+ Allocations for 2009/10:
An officer introduced a report of the Director of Schools and Children’s Development, 
which set out information about the allocation of places to Reception (Rising 5), 11+ 
Transfer and 12+ Transfer for the academic year 2009/2010.  Information relating to 
primary schools indicated that the number of applications being granted their first 
preference was declining and information relating to high schools revealed a small 
increase in the numbers of applications for schools outside the borough. 

A discussion took place between members regarding parents who had applied for their 
nearest four primary schools and had been offered none.  A member reported that they 
had used their own address as a test and discovered that they would not have been 
offered any of their closest primary schools, and questioned the validity of a system 
where, in a populated urban area, parents could not be offered a place at schools 
which were within easy walking distance.  Another member added that such instances 
had previously been investigated by the Admissions Service but the circumstances in 
those cases were different.  It was questioned whether the number of preferences 
allowed on the application form could be raised from four to five.  An officer replied that 
the problem was not specific to Harrow but was something that was affecting London 
and the South-East of England.  The area around schools in which successful 
applicants lived was decreasing every year. As a result the Government had introduced 
two initiatives by which to better coordinate primary applications.  The first was to 
co-ordinate in-year applications from September 2010 and for the school year 
2011/2012 to co-ordinate intake to reception.  Local authorities across London are 
currently developing draft schemes of co-ordination, with one recommendation being to 
allow applicants to make up to six preferences for admission to Reception.  The officer 
reported that due to the high level of demand for some schools it was not possible to 

5



ACHAF 41  ADVISORY AND CONSULTATIVE 

give a guarantee that all applicants could be offered one of their local school and that 
finding an equitable system, given the population number and the differences in 
opinions over what was a reasonable distance to travel to school, was very difficult.  
The same officer added that a system for applicants to do their own home to school 
measurements would be available on the Harrow website in the Autumn term. 

In response to a suggestion from a member about the how distance tie-breaker was 
measured, an officer reminded the Forum that there were other options open to the 
Council other than measuring the distance in a straight line, which the Forum may wish 
to consider.  

RESOLVED:  That (1) the report be noted; 

(2)  applications where parents were not being offered any of their four nearest 
preferred maintained primary schools be monitored and that a report on the numbers 
be provided to the Forum. 

127. Measurement of Distance from Home to School:
An officer introduced a report of the Director of Schools and Children’s Development, 
which advised of the current arrangements in place for measuring distance from home 
address to school.  Information was provided to the forum for clarification following 
concerns raised by parents who were unsuccessful in gaining places at Newton Farm 
School because of the positioning of the school gates. 

The Forum noted that: 

- distance from home to school was measured in a straight line; 

- the entry points used were those defined by the school; 

- since the allocation of school places for 2009, all schools had been asked to 
confirm the official gates/entry points for the purposes of providing a new 
facility which would enable parents to calculate their own home to school 
distance; 

- officers would be visiting all schools for further confirmation of official gates and 
entry points. 

A member queried whether the official gates and entry points were something that 
could be defined by the Council’s Planning Service.  In response, the Chairman 
requested that legal advice be sought and that a report be brought to the next meeting 
of the Forum.  The same member queried whether it would be practicable to assign the 
entrance of the main school building as the official gate and entry point.  Another 
member replied that many schools did not have one main entrance to their buildings 
and that it was highly impractical to channel a high number of students through one 
entrance or exit. 

RESOLVED:  That (1) the report be noted;  

(2)  the Director of Legal and Governance Services submit a report to the next meeting 
of the Forum on whether the Planning Service had any control over the official gates 
and entry points of schools. 

128. Planned Admission Numbers:
An officer reported orally on planned admission numbers and informed the Forum who 
was responsible for monitoring this area of work.  Since the School Organisation 
Committee was abolished in 2005, place planning had been under the control of the 
Council’s Education Service. Information statutory proposals to change planned 
admissions numbers could be brought to the Forum for information purposes.  The 
same officer confirmed that the Director of Schools and Children’s Services would be 
asked which Council forum would deal with issues related to school place planning. 

RESOLVED:  That the officer response be noted. 

129. Deferred Entry to School:
In response to a question from a member of the Forum, an officer stated that the 
Portfolio Holder for Schools and Children’s Development would be responding to a 
question from a member of the public on deferred entry at the Cabinet meeting of 
16 July 2009.  The Chairman requested that a report on deferred entry be brought to 
the next meeting of the Forum as well as the response from the relevant Portfolio 
Holder. 

6



ADVISORY AND CONSULTATIVE   ACHAF 42 

RESOLVED:  That (1) the officer response be noted; 

(2)  a report on deferred entry, and the response to the relevant question asked at the 
Cabinet meeting of 16 July 2009, be brought to the next meeting of the Harrow 
Admissions Forum. 

130. Rising 5 Allocation:
(See Minute 126). 

(Note:  The meeting having commenced at 6.15 pm, closed at 7.17 pm) 

(Signed) REVEREND P REECE 
Chairman 

7



8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Meeting: 
 

Harrow Admissions Forum 

Date: 
 

21 October 2009 

Subject: 
 

Changes to requirement for proof of 
address 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Heather Clements, Director of Schools 
and Children’s Development 
 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

Councillor Anjana Patel, Portfolio Holder 
for Schools and Children’s Development 
 

Exempt: 
 

No 

Enclosures: 
 

None 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This report puts forward a proposal to change the arrangements currently in 
place to confirm address when submitting an application for a school place 
 
Recommendations:  
The Admissions Forum is requested to:  
 
Consider and make a decision on the request of the voluntary aided schools 
to ask for two pieces of documentary evidence as proof of resident in Harrow. 
 
Reason:  (For recommendation) 
To ensure there is fairness and equity across all Harrow schools in relation to 
providing proof of address as part of the application process. 
 

Agenda Item 7
Pages 9 to 12

9



 

Section 2 – Report 
 
At their meeting on 14 July 2009, Members of the Forum received an 
information report advising of the current arrangements for confirming proof of 
residence for applicants for community schools.   
 
On 23 September 2009 a meeting was held with representatives from 
Harrow’s voluntary aided schools to discuss arrangements for the co-
ordination of in-year applications.  Representatives from the VA schools 
indicated that mainly they request two separate documents as proof of 
address.  They felt that this provided a more robust system and reduced the 
possibility of applicants providing false or misleading information.  
 
Currently their requirement is to request a current council tax bill, which is 
normally issued in April.  They also require a utility bill issued within the last 
three months in order to obtain more up to date verification of address.   
 
Because of the very high levels of demand for places, the VA schools 
indicated that they would not wish to reduce the requirement for proof of 
address. 
 
In the circumstances, and to maintain equity across the sectors, it is proposed 
that the proof of address for requirements for all maintain schools should be: 
 

1. Current year council tax bill in the name of the applicant 
2. A utility bill in the name of the applicants issued within the last 3 

months. 
 
Implications of the Recommendation 
 
There would be implications in terms of additional workload on the 
Admissions Service, particularly if the applicant only submitted a council tax 
bill.  However, because the Service has access to the council tax data base, it 
would be possible to undertake a check to confirm that the applicant still lived 
at the address given on the application form.  Only in circumstances where 
the applicant was not still registered at the address would it be necessary to 
contact the applicant for further proof of address. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
As any additional workload resulting from this proposal would be minimal it is 
anticipated that it can be met from current resources.  
 
Risk Management Implications 
 
N/A.  
 

10



 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
 
 

  
on behalf of the* 

Name:…Emma Stabler……. √ Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: …8.10.09………….. 

  

 
 

  
on behalf of the* 

Name: …Linda Cohen………… √ Monitoring Officer 
 
Date: …8.10.09……………….. 

  
 

*Delete the words “on behalf of the” if the report is cleared directly by 
Myfanwy or Hugh. 
 
 
 
Section 4 - Contact Details and Background Papers 
 
 
Contact:  Madeleine Hitchens, Manager, Place Planning & Admissions 
Service  020 8424 1398 
 
 
Background Papers:    N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Meeting: 
 

Harrow Admissions Forum 

Date: 
 

21 October 2009 

Subject: 
 

Flexible entry to reception 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Heather Clements, Director of Schools 
and Children’s Development 
 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

Councillor Anjana Patel, Portfolio Holder 
for Schools and Children’s Development 
 

Exempt: 
 

No 

Enclosures: None 
 
 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
This report considers the proposal put forward in a public question to Cabinet 
as to whether the borough would consider allowing more flexible entry to 
school by allowing younger children to start school a year later. 
 
Recommendations:  
The Admissions Forum is requested to:  
1. Note the report and consider the views of the Educational Psychology 

Service, Achievement & Inclusion Service and the Early Years Service 
2. In light of these comments, decide whether the current admission 

arrangements meet the needs of the younger and less developed 
children or whether a change is required. 

 
Reason:  (For recommendation) 
 
To ensure Harrow’s admissions policy is meeting the needs of the younger 
and less developed children at the time of admission to school. 
 

 

Agenda Item 8
Pages 13 to 18

13



 

Section 2 – Report 
 
The following questions were asked at the Cabinet meeting on 16 July 2009. 
 
Background 
Question  
“Research commissioned by the government done by IFS,published in 2007, 
showed that sometimes even up to the age of 16, the youngest pupils are still 
behind their older counterparts.  The school secretary has said last year that 
summer-born children should be allowed to defer entry for up to a year, 
following that, is the borough is considering allowing more flexible entry to 
school by allowing younger children to start school a year later and also, as 
there is so much being said about younger children falling behind, how does 
the borough specifically caters for these younger and less developed children 
during their first years at school (reception till year 2)?” 
 
Answer: The Council has not yet determined any possible future admission 
arrangements for younger children. This would be discussed at the Admission 
Forum before any changes were introduced.  Any decision taken would be 
made in the light of guidance in the School Admissions Code of Practice and 
from the DCSF.  All provisions for Early Years education take particular care 
to ensure that all children are assessed on entry to nursery school and, 
whatever the child's development and skills at that point, appropriate activities 
are then planned to help them make good progress. We are actually 
discussing this already, so your question as come at the right time. 
 
 
Supplemental Question: 
Is the Council considering, in addition to the assessments that are done in the 
beginning of the year to allow for assessment of specific younger children 
before they start school to check, not just whether they are at the right 
milestone for their own age but how they are compared to the skill they need 
to have by starting school and the academic work that they need to deal with? 
 
Supplemental Answer:   Yes. As I said, we are discussing that, so we will 
look at that and make a decision on the evidence and what we need to do, we 
will be doing. I understand that you wanted to meet with me and I am 
prepared to meet with you and the officers whenever it is appropriate. 
 
 
 
Current situation 
 
The school admissions Code of Practice requires that where admission 
authorities for primary schools offer places in reception classes to parents 
before their children are of compulsory school age, they must allow parents to 
request that their child’s entry be deferred until later in the same school year.  
The effect of this is that the place is held for that child and is not available to 
be offered to another child. The parent is not  able to defer entry beyond the 
beginning of the term after the child’s fifth birthday, nor beyond the academic 
year for which the original application was accepted. 
 
 
 

14



 

In Harrow all children start in Reception in September.  This covers children 
born on 1 September to 31 August.  In the past two years, the Admissions 
Service has received no formal requests for deferred entry at the time of 
application.  However, one or two cases a year are brought to our attention by 
schools of parents requesting deferred entry after the school place has been 
allocated.  Such requests are agreed at a local level. 
 
More flexible entry to reception could mean some children would be admitted 
to school outside of their chronological age group.  This would have an impact 
throughout their school career.  If a change to the admission rules were to be 
agreed allowing deferred entry for a full school year children would be 
chronologically Year 1 when they start school.  They would transfer to high 
school, would sit exams and enter sixth form a year later than their age-
related peers.  Issues could arise if the child in question later developed at a 
pace that meant they were academically, socially and emotionally more 
mature than the children in their age group.  Because the child would have 
reached statutory school leaving age in Year 10, there would be no 
requirement on the parent to ensure they completed their secondary 
education. 
 
If a change to the current admission arrangements is proposed, then this 
would need to form part of the annual consultation on admission 
arrangements for September 2011/12. 
 
 
Comments from the Educational Psychology Service 
 
There is no strong evidence that supports educating children out of their 
chronological age group is in their best interest.  The Early Years curriculum 
provides sufficient flexibility to meet the needs of younger and less developed 
children and offers opportunities for phased admission and/or part-time 
placement until the child reaches statutory school age.  Younger and less 
developed children are better placed in school where they can be observed 
and monitored.  Once a child has started school and professional staff have 
had an opportunity to undertake an assessment the school, in partnership 
with parents,  can agree for the child to spend an extra year within the early 
years curriculum (in exceptional circumstances). 
 
There is a lot of flexibility in the system already and within the current 
statutory requirements it would be difficult to move beyond this.   
 
Comments from the Achievement and Inclusion and Integrated Early 
Years and Community Services. 
 
These services work with schools to support the full implementation of the 
Early Years Foundation Stage and the provision of a play based curriculum 
within year one which is fully differentiated to meet the needs of all children.  
Whilst acknowledging that some schools have not traditionally offered a play 
based curriculum, Harrow in partnership with the National Strategies has been 
running a transition programme that has looked at practice between 
Reception and Year 1.  This has brought together those practitioners from 
Harrow schools to discuss how to meet children's needs and fully differentiate 
the curriculum to meet the needs of all children so they all make good 
progress. 
 

15



 

The borough, together with partners ensures that schools get a wide range of 
support and advice to support them in providing the best possible early 
education for children this includes: 
 
• Access to the Every Child a Talker project 
 
• Training and continuing professional opportunities 
 
• Specific projects to look at developing best practice to roll out across 

Harrow 
 
Work is currently taking place to support schools with making good "On Entry" 
assessments.  This work is being guided by the Early Years Foundation Stage 
and key National Strategies documentation, in particular Progress Matters.  
Guidance will be issued to all schools from Achievement and Inclusion and 
Integrated Early Years and Community Services this Autumn. 
 
The recommendation from the Review of the Primary curriculum by Sir Jim 
Rose, that the preferred pattern for entry to school should be the September 
following a child’s fourth birthday. It would seem at odds with the report to 
adopt a change in council policy when flexibility and support are the key to a 
successful transition.  Schools already adopt a sensitive and consultative 
approach with parents over readiness for full time school.  A high quality, 
responsive Early Years Foundation Stage provision would do much to close 
the gaps in achievement for some summer born children.  This is what 
Achievement and Inclusion and the Early Years Team are working together to 
ensure that every child experiences. 
 
Implications of changing admission arrangements to allow for flexible 
entry to reception. 
 
There would be costs involved in implementing such a process, such as  input 
from the Early Years Team and the Educational Psychology Service. 
 
Once children are of statutory school age, parents are required to ensure that 
their child is in receipt of full-time education sufficient for his/her age, aptitude 
and ability.  If a more flexible approach to entry to reception were to be 
adopted, then their could be implications for monitoring and assessing how 
parents were meeting this requirement. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
If this proposal was implemented there may be minor implications for Schools 
Funding Formula that would need to be considered.  
 
Risk Management Implications 
 
Once children are of statutory school age, parents are required to ensure that 
their child is in receipt of full-time education sufficient for his/her age, aptitude 
and ability.  If a more flexible approach to entry to reception were to be 
adopted, then there could be implications for monitoring and assessing how 
parents were meeting this requirement. 
 

16



 

 
Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
 
 

  
on behalf of the* 

Name:…Emma Stabler…. √ Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date:  …8.10..09……….. 

  

 
 

  
on behalf of the* 

Name: …Linda Cohen… √ Monitoring Officer 
 
Date:……8.10.09 

  
 

*Delete the words “on behalf of the” if the report is cleared directly by 
Myfanwy or Hugh. 
 
 
 
Section 4 - Contact Details and Background Papers 
 
 
Contact:  Madeleine Hitchens, Manager, Place Planning & Admissions 
Service  020 8424 1398 
 
Background Papers:   N/A. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If appropriate, does the report include the following 
considerations?  
 
 
1. Consultation  YES  
2. Corporate Priorities  YES  
 
 

17



18

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  
Committee: 
 

Harrow Admissions Forum. 

Date: 
 

21 October 2009 

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT – HAF Working 
Party on nursery admissions 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Heather Clements, Director of Schools 
and Children’s Development 
 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

Councillor Anjana Patel, Portfolio Holder 
for Schools and Children’s Development 
 

Exempt: 
 

No 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix 1 : Survey of Nursery Class 
Headteachers  

 
Section 1 – Summary 
 
 
This report updates Members of the Admissions Forum of the work of the 
Nursery Admissions Working Party. 
 
FOR INFORMATION 
 
 
 
Section 2 – Report 
 
At their meeting on 23 February 2009 the Harrow Admission Forum agreed 
that a Working Group should be retained to consider admission 
arrangements, including the over-subscription criteria for nursery places. 
 
The Working Group met on 9 July 2009 and the following points were raised: 
 
1. The Group felt that a clearer definition of their terms of reference should 

be requested from the Admissions Forum and that the Admission Forum 
decision should be formally minuted. 

 

Agenda Item 9
Pages 19 to 22

19



 

2. Members of the Group also felt it would be helpful to have more 
headteachers co-opted onto the Group.  The Head of Service for 
Integrated Early Years and Community Services agreed to raise this with 
nursery headteachers at their next meeting. 

 
3. Officers were requested to present a report on how nursery 

arrangements are currently working, based on a survey of nursery 
headteachers (see Appendix A).  A meeting was scheduled for 29 
September 2009 but by that date only 12 responses had been received 
from the 28 forms sent to headteachers.  In the circumstances, it was 
agreed to cancel the scheduled meeting in order to give those schools 
who had not responded time to do in order that the Working Group 
could have a full picture of how nursery admissions are working across 
all schools. 

 

 
 
Section 3 – Further Information 
 
A further, more detailed report will be presented to the next meeting of the 
Admissions Forum. 
 
Section 4 – Financial Implications 
 
There are no financial implications from this report, as this report is for 
information only. 
 
 
 
 

  
on behalf of the 

Name:…Emma Stabler…… √ Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: … 8.10.09.. 

  

 
 
Section 5 - Contact Details and Background Papers 
 
Contact:  Madeleine Hitchens, Manager, Place Planning & 
Admissions 020 8424 1398 
 
Background Papers:  N/A 

20



 

APPENDIX A 

 
Paul Clark 

Corporate Director  
Children’s Services 

 
TO:   Headteachers of all Schools with Nursery Schools   Date: 2.9.09 
 
 
The Harrow Admissions Forum has established a small Working Group to review the 
oversubscription criteria and other arrangements for admission to nursery classes 
attached to Harrow Infant/Primary Schools.  It would be very much appreciated if you 
could complete the following questionnaire to provide the Members of the Working Group 
with information about how you feel nursery admissions are working currently and how 
they could be improved.  Your input is crucial to ensuring the process is responsive to 
current needs. 
 
QUESTIONNAIRE ABOUT NURSERY ADMISSIONS 
 
 
Please let us know what is working well in relation to admission to your nursery class? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Please tell us what is not working well in relation to admission to your nursery class? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As far as you are aware what are the areas of nursery admissions that are working well 
across the authority? 
 
 
 
 
 
As far as you are aware what are the areas of nursery admissions that are not working 
well across the authority? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
…..continued overleaf

21



 

 
:  2  : 

 
Is your nursery usually oversubscribed?                                              YES  /  NO 
 
If yes, please provide the following information: 
 
 Number of applications received Date of birth of youngest child admitted 
2008/9 
2007/8 
2006/7 
 
Are there issues you would like to raise about full-time / part-time/ am/ pm provisions? 
 
 
 
 
Do you think the current oversubscription criteria are appropriate?     YES  /  NO 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If no, what changes do you think should be made? 
 
 
 
 
 
How are nursery applications administered by the school / across schools? 
 
 
 
 
 
ANY OTHER COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Headteacher’s name:    School 
 
 
Signed      Date 
 
Please return by 23 September 2009 to Madeleine Hitchens, Room 243, Civic Centre 
 

22



 

 
Meeting: 
 

Harrow Admissions Forum 

Date: 
 

21 October 2009 

Subject: 
 

Information report: Admissions policy and 
location of school gates 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Hugh Peart, Director of Legal and 
Governance 
 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

Councillor Anjana Patel, Portfolio Holder 
for Schools and Children’s Development 
 

Exempt: 
 

No 

Enclosures: 
 

None 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
This report is provided for members’ information in response to a request from 
the Harrow Admissions forum at their meeting of 14 July 2009 to advise on 
the designation of the entry points for schools for the purposes of calculating 
distances to schools for admissions procedures. 
 
Recommendations:  
For information. 
 
Reason:  (For recommendation) 
Members requested information on the designation of entry points for schools 
for the purposes of calculating distances to schools for admissions 
procedures. 
 

 

Agenda Item 10
Pages 23 to 26

23



 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Background  
 
Harrow Council publishes admissions criteria annually; the criteria are applied 
where schools are oversubscribed.  The current published admissions criteria 
determine that the Headteacher/Governing Body shall determine where 
school gates are for the purposes of calculating the distance to a particular 
school. There is no legal definition of a ‘school gate’; the admissions criteria 
define the basis upon which Harrow Council uses the home to school criteria. 
 
 
Current situation 
In the past, there have been some uncertainties regarding which entrances 
are utilised for the purposes of calculating the distance to a school gate. In 
order to overcome some of these difficulties, school gates for each school in 
the borough are now indicated on a plan. This plan is signed by the 
Headteacher of the school concerned, and published on the Harrow Council 
website.  Applicants for school places are able to access copies of the plans 
via the website.  
 
In determining the location of the entry points for a school, obvious 
considerations such as enabling access for disabled persons, maintaining a 
safe environment around the entrance in compliance with health and safety 
legislation, especially with regard to fire escapes, are important.  
 
The crucial point is that the published admissions criteria makes clear 
reference to school gates and provides detailed information online. 
 
 
Other options considered 
 
Members of the Harrow Admissions Forum have queried whether the Council 
would have planning control over the entry points at schools. 
 
Members are advised that planning control in these types of circumstances 
can ordinarily only be exercised over physical structures and not entry points.  
 
Newly erected gates and posts may fall within the type of physical structures 
the Council would have planning control over, but every potential breach of 
planning control would have to be assessed on a case by case basis.  
 
Depending on the circumstances of each case, the planning enforcement 
officer would have to consider whether the physical structure falls within the 
statutory definition of the type of development that requires planning 
permission; how long the physical structure has been in situ; the harm 
resulting from the physical structure; and whether it would be expedient to 
take enforcement action to require removal of a physical structure. 
 
 
 
Legal Implications 
 
The legal implications are addressed within the report. 

24



 

 
Financial Implications 
There are no financial implications from this report, as this report is for 
information only. 
 
 
Risk Management Implications 
 
Report for information only. 
  
Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
 
 

  
on behalf of the* 

Name:…Emma Stabler………. √ Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: …………8.10.09……….. 

  

 
 

  
on behalf of the* 

Name: Jessica Farmer √ Monitoring Officer 
 
Date: 8 October 2009 

  
 

*Delete the words “on behalf of the” if the report is cleared directly by 
Myfanwy or Hugh. 
 
 
 
Section 4 - Contact Details and Background Papers 
 
 
Contact:  Catherine Morgans, Legal and Governance  
 
 
Background Papers:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
If appropriate, does the report include the following 
considerations?  
 
 
1. Consultation  YES / NO 
2. Corporate Priorities  YES / NO  
 

25



26

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  
Committee: 
 

Harrow Admissions Forum. 

Date: 
 

21 October 2009 

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT – New 
requirement to co-ordinate primary and in-
year admissions 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Heather Clements, Director of Schools 
and Children’s Development 
 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

Councillor Anjana Patel, Portfolio Holder 
Schools and Children’s Development 
 

Exempt: 
 

No 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix 1 – Step by step explanation of 
co-ordination  

 
Section 1 – Summary 
 
 
This report informs members of the Harrow Admissions Forum of the new 
requirement to co-ordinate admissions as follows: 
• In-year admissions with effect from September 2010 
• Admission to Reception class as from September 2011. 
 
FOR INFORMATION 
 
 
 
Section 2 – Report 
 
Current arrangements 
 
Transfer from primary to high school 
 
11+ transfer 
 

Agenda Item 11
Pages 27 to 30

27



 

Every year around 60,000 pupils living in London transfer to high school, 
many crossing borough boundaries to do so.  All 33 London boroughs and 
some councils bordering the capital (eg Hertfordshire) have signed up to a 
system to co-ordinate admissions to their high schools.   
 
 
Under the Pan-London Co-ordinated Admissions System, all parents list the 
schools that they want to apply for on one form, ranking them in order of 
preference.  This form is returned to the council in which the child/family lives. 
 
All councils taking part in the Pan-London Co-ordinated Admissions System 
then use a computerised system to pass on details of applications for schools 
in other areas and to co-ordinate the offer of places to make sure that nobody 
gets offered more than one school place.  The decision on whether a place 
can be offered will continue to be made by the admission authority for each 
school listed on the application form.  Where a school is oversubscribed, its 
published admission criteria will be used to decide the order in which 
applicants will be offered places.  The council holds the offer for the highest 
preference on the parents’ form and releases all other lower preference offers, 
so that these places can be offered to other applicants.  Potential offers are 
then exchanged between councils until they are in a position to make the 
single best offer to parents using all available places.  (See appendix 1 for 
step by step explanation of the co-ordinated process).  
 
 
12+ transfer 
 
Currently, transfer to Harrow community high schools varies slightly from the 
11+ scheme in that the way parents apply for a place in Year 8 is the same 
whether applicants live in Harrow or in another borough.  Following the 
change in age of transfer, September 2010 will see the final cohort of children 
transferring in Year 8 to high school.  For the 2011/12 academic, all 
applications will be dealt with under the 11+ scheme of co-ordination.   
 
 
Changes introduced for September 2010 and September 2011. 
 
From the 2010-2011 academic year, there is a new requirement for local 
authorities to formulate a scheme for co-ordinating in-year applications.  That 
is applications made during the academic year and applications for admission 
to age groups other than the normal year of entry.  This scheme must be 
formulated by 1 January 2010. 
 
From 2011-2012 onwards, local authorities must formulate schemes for co-
ordinating all applications to maintained schools from parents in their area, 
whenever received, and for whichever age group, under one scheme.   
 
 
Section 3 – Further Information 
 
Full details of the draft schemes of co-ordination will be presented to the 
Admissions Forum at its next meeting as part of the report on Consultation on 
Admission Arrangements for 2011-12. 
 

28



 

Section 4 – Financial Implications 
 
The new admission arrangements will impact on the work of the admissions 
service however it is not expected that it will require additional resources. 
 
 
 

  
on behalf of the 

Name:…Emma Stabler…. √ Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: ………8.10.09…….. 

  

 
 
Section 5 - Contact Details and Background Papers 
 
Contact:  Madeleine Hitchens, Manager, Place Planning & 
Admissions 020 8424 1398 
 
Background Papers:  N/A 

29



 

APPENDIX 1 
 

How places are allocated under Harrow’s 11+ Transfer Co-ordinated 
Admissions Scheme for Harrow community and voluntary aided schools 
and schools outside of Harrow 
 
STEP 1 
Applications for Harrow community high schools will be dealt with by the 
Harrow Admissions Service. If you have named a Harrow voluntary aided 
school on the application form, we will send details of your application to 
them, as they are responsible for their own admissions.  If you have named a 
secondary school in another council on the application form, we will send 
details of your application to that council.  
 
STEP 2 
If a school has more children applying than places available, the 
council/school governors will use their published rules to decide to whom to 
allocate places. Harrow’s voluntary aided schools and other councils will then 
tell us if they can allocate you a place. 
 
STEP 3 
Once we have details of which children can be offered places, we will co-
ordinate all the offers to make sure that only one offer is made. We do this by 
applying the ranking information you gave on the application form in the 
following way:  
• If your child meets the rules for more than one of the schools you have 

asked for we will look at the rankings you gave the schools and offer you a 
place at your highest-ranked school. 

• If your child meets the rules for only one of the schools on your list, we will 
offer you a place there. 

 
STEP 4 
Offers for schools placed lower on your list of preferences will not be made 
when a higher preference school has been offered. 
 
STEP 5 
 
If you applied on line, offers will be available to view from 7.00 am on 2 March 
2010.  Letters will be posted first class to all applicants on 1 March 2010.  If 
you wish to accept the place, you need to fill in the reply form provided and 
return it to the Admissions Service at the Civic Centre by Monday, 25 March 
2010.  Later the school will contact you with details of arrangements for your 
child to start at the school, including any preliminary visits and parents’ 
evenings. 
 
STEP 6 
 
Once offers have been made on 1 March and up to 31 August 2010, Harrow 
will seek to ensure that a place is not offered at a school in its area ranked on 
the CAF as a lower preference than any school already offered to a parent 
(see Step 4 above). 
 
 
 

30



 

  
Committee: 
 

Harrow Admissions Forum. 

Date: 
 

21 October 2009 

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT – Applicants not 
offered any of their four preferred schools 
for September 2009. 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Heather Clements, Director, Schools and 
Children’s Development. 
 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

Councillor Anjana Patel, Portfolio Holder 
for Schools and Children’s Development.  
 

Exempt: 
 

No 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix 1  

 
 
Section 1 – Summary 
 
 
This report is in response to the request of Members of the Harrow 
Admissions Forum at their meeting on 14 July 210 for information on 
applicants not offered any of the four preferred schools. 
 
FOR INFORMATION 
 
 
 
Section 2 – Report 
 
Appendix 1 gives details of 110 applicants for primary schools who were not 
offered any of the four schools they had named as preferences on their 
application for a Reception class place for September 2009.  Only six of the 
110 applicants were offered place further from home than the schools they 
had applied for.  Three of these applicants were offered a school more than 5 
miles from home.  The reason for this is the unprecedented number of 
applications received for reception class places, which required the authority 
to take special measures to increase capacity in order to be able to offer 

Agenda Item 12
Pages 31 to 46

31



 

every Harrow resident child a school place.  Pressure on places in the south 
east of the borough was particularly high and despite the actions taken to 
ameliorate the situation it was not possible to offer these three children 
schools nearer to their home.  Appendix 1 gives the most up-to-date 
information about these children. 
 
High school applicants not offered one of their preferred schools, were all 
offered places at schools closer to home than those named on the application 
form. 
 
Section 3 – Further Information 
 
A further report will be presented to the Harrow Admissions Forum after the 
2010/11 admissions round. 
 
Section 4 – Financial Implications 
 
There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
 
 
 

  
on behalf of the 

Name:…Emma Stabler…. √ Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: ………8.10.09…….. 

  

 
 
Section 5 - Contact Details and Background Papers 
 
Contact:  Madeleine Hitchens, Manager, Place Planning & Admissions 
020 8424 1398 
 
Background Papers:  N/A 
 

32



Preference 21 = Place allocated by Harrow as 
could not meet any of the parental preferences

Pupil ID Pref Distance
1 79794 1 2.076 Grimsdyke First & Middle School

79794 2 0.833 Priestmead First School
79794 3 1.042 Marlborough First & Middle School
79794 4 1.379 Pinner Park First School
79794 21 0.280 Weald Offered

nearest Belmont/Weald/Priestmead
2 80537 1 0.715 St.Teresa's First & Middle  School

80537 2 1.172 St.John Fisher  First and Middle School
80537 3 2.152 St.Joseph's  Primary School
80537 4 2.427 St.Anselm's  Primary School
80537 21 0.839 Cedars Offered

nearest Grimsdyke/Cedars
3 80744 1 0.944 Pinner Park First School

80744 2 1.588 Whitchurch First School
80744 3 1.636 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
80744 4 2.704 Newton Farm First & Middle School
80744 21 0.343 Whitefriars Offered

nearest Whitefriars/Cedars
4 81050 1 0.091 Newton Farm First & Middle School

81050 2 0.946 Cannon Lane First School
81050 3 1.626 West Lodge First and Middle School
81050 4 2.985 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
81050 21 0.754 Grange Offered

nearest Newton/Roxbourne/Roxeth Manor
5 81201 1 0.782 Newton Farm First & Middle School

81201 2 2.902 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
81201 3 1.508 Cannon Lane First School
81201 4 1.381 Marlborough First & Middle School
81201 21 0.144 grange Offered

nearest Grange/Roxeth
6 81370 1 1.878 Cannon Lane First School

81370 2 1.369 Newton Farm First & Middle School
81370 3 2.714 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
81370 4 2.085 West Lodge First and Middle School
81370 21 0.675 grange Offered

nearest Grange/Vaughan
7 81409 1 1.027 Longfield First School

81409 2 0.378 Vaughan First & Middle School
81409 3 1.459 Newton Farm First & Middle School
81409 4 1.200 Pinner Park First School
81409 21 0.803 Grange Offered

nearest Vaughan/Grange
8 81549 1 2.677 Grimsdyke First & Middle School

81549 2 1.008 Longfield First School
81549 3 2.030 West Lodge First and Middle School
81549 4 0.595 Roxeth First & Middle School
81549 21 0.632 grange Offered

nearest Roxeth/Grange/Vaughan
9 81667 1 1.226 Whitchurch First School

81667 2 0.838 Priestmead First School
81667 3 2.178 Krishna-Avanti Primary School
81667 4 1.027 Stanburn First School
81667 21 0.235 belmont Offered

nearest Belmont/Weald/Priestmead

APPLICANTS NOT OFFERED ANY OF THEIR FOUR PREFERRED SCHOOLS

33



10 81856 1 0.989 Pinner Park First School
81856 2 1.255 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
81856 3 2.903 Newton Farm First & Middle School
81856 4 2.617 Cannon Lane First School
81856 21 0.240 Cedars Offered

nearest Cedars/Whitefriars
11 81859 1 0.774 Pinner Park First School

81859 2 1.280 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
81859 3 1.100 Marlborough First & Middle School
81859 4 1.935 West Lodge First and Middle School
81859 21 0.132 Cedars Offered

nearest Cedars/Whitefriars
12 81968 1 0.476 Cannon Lane First School

81968 2 0.506 West Lodge First and Middle School
81968 3 1.176 Pinner Park First School
81968 4 1.828 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
81968 21 1.296 Grange Offered

nearest Cannon Lane/West Lodge/Longfield
13 81977 1 2.522 Cannon Lane First School

81977 2 1.584 Newton Farm First & Middle School
81977 3 1.934 Roxbourne First School
81977 4 2.188 Marlborough First & Middle School
81977 21 0.547 Welldon Park Offered

nearest Welldon Pk/Roxeth
14 82200 1 1.441 Newton Farm First & Middle School

82200 2 0.768 Marlborough First & Middle School
82200 3 0.354 Norbury School
82200 4 2.691 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
82200 21 0.750 Grange Offered

nearest Norbury/Marlborough
15 82220 1 2.851 Pinner Park First School

82220 2 3.407 Vaughan First & Middle School
82220 3 3.076 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
82220 4 3.921 Longfield First School
82220 21 1.417 Weald Offered

nearest Aylward/Whitchurch
16 82236 1 0.701 Pinner Park First School

82236 2 0.678 Vaughan First & Middle School
82236 3 1.433 Roxeth First & Middle School
82236 4 1.749 West Lodge First and Middle School
82236 21 0.565 Whitefriars Offered

nearest Marlborough/Whitefriars/Vaughan
17 82255 1 2.110 Pinner Park First School

82255 2 1.925 West Lodge First and Middle School
82255 3 1.292 Cannon Lane First School
82255 4 0.913 Longfield First School
82255 21 0.205 Roxeth Manor Offered

nearest Newton Farm/Roxeth Manor/Earlsmead
18 82289 1 0.669 Newton Farm First & Middle School

82289 2 1.575 West Lodge First and Middle School
82289 3 2.576 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
82289 4 1.190 Cannon Lane First School
82289 21 0.221 Grange Offered

nearest Grange/Roxeth Manor

34



19 82455 1 0.530 West Lodge First and Middle School
82455 2 1.223 Cannon Lane First School
82455 3 1.097 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
82455 4 1.345 Pinner Park First School
82455 21 1.747 Cedars Offered SCHOOL OFFERED  IS FURTHER THAN ANY

nearest Pinner Wood/West Lodge OF PARENTS 4 PREFERENCES
20 82509 1 0.487 Norbury School

82509 2 0.577 Marlborough First & Middle School
82509 3 1.148 Vaughan First & Middle School
82509 4 1.840 Whitchurch First School
82509 21 0.922 Belmont Offered

nearest Norbury/Marlborough
21 82511 1 1.347 Roxbourne First School

82511 2 0.561 Roxeth First & Middle School
82511 3 1.909 Cannon Lane First School
82511 4 0.989 Newton Farm First & Middle School
82511 21 0.229 Welldon Park Offered

nearest Welldon Park/Roxeth  
22 82614 1 1.357 Grimsdyke First & Middle School

82614 2 2.216 West Lodge First and Middle School
82614 3 1.095 Pinner Park First School
82614 4 1.535 Stanburn First School
82614 21 0.363 Cedars Offered

nearest Cedars/Whitefriars
23 82643 1 1.696 Pinner Park First School

82643 2 0.779 Marlborough First & Middle School
82643 3 0.472 Norbury School
82643 4 2.503 Cannon Lane First School
82643 21 1.825 Weald Offered

nearest Elmgrove/Norbury
24 82644 1 0.361 Norbury School

82644 2 0.995 Vaughan First & Middle School
82644 3 0.333 Marlborough First & Middle School
82644 4 1.292 Pinner Park First School
82644 21 0.816 Belmont Offered

nearest Marlborough/Norbury/Whitefriars
25 82673 1 0.842 Newton Farm First & Middle School

82673 2 1.898 West Lodge First and Middle School
82673 3 1.509 Cannon Lane First School
82673 4 0.449 Vaughan First & Middle School
82673 21 0.149 Grange Offered

nearest Grange/Vaughan
26 82674 1 0.560 Vaughan First & Middle School

82674 2 0.695 Pinner Park First School
82674 3 1.072 Longfield First School
82674 4 0.334 Marlborough First & Middle School
82674 21 0.685 Whitefriars Offered

nearest Marlborough/Vaughan
27 83624 1 1.323 St.John's C of E School, Stanmore

83624 2 0.368 St.Joseph's  Primary School
83624 3 1.152 St.Teresa's First & Middle  School
83624 4 3.054 Newton Farm First & Middle School
83624 21 0.282 Weald Offered

nearest Belmont/Weald

35



28 83811 1 1.034 St.Anselm's  Primary School
83811 2 1.783 St.John Fisher  First and Middle School
83811 3 0.998 St.George's Primary  School, Harrow
83811 4 1.083 Vaughan First & Middle School
83811 21 0.260 Welldon Park Offered

nearest Welldon Park/Roxeth Manor
29 83812 1 1.226 St.Anselm's  Primary School

83812 2 2.001 St.John Fisher  First and Middle School
83812 3 2.984 St.Teresa's First & Middle  School
83812 4 0.996 St.George's Primary  School, Harrow
83812 21 0.030 Welldon Park Offered

nearest Welldon Park/Earlsmead/Roxeth manor
30 83830 1 0.975 St.Anselm's  Primary School

83830 2 0.994 St.Joseph's  Primary School
83830 3 1.164 St.Teresa's First & Middle  School
83830 4 1.941 St.George's Primary  School, Harrow
83830 21 0.491 Whitefriars Offered

nearest Marlborough/Norbury/Whitefriars
31 83997 1 0.921 Roxbourne First School

83997 2 0.836 Newton Farm First & Middle School
83997 3 1.681 Longfield First School
83997 4 2.468 West Lodge First and Middle School
83997 21 0.198 Earlsmead Offered

nearest Earlsmead/Roxeth manor
32 84004 1 0.921 St.Bernadette's  Primary School

84004 2 1.060 St.Joseph's  Primary School
84004 3 2.484 St.John's C of E School, Stanmore
84004 4 0.640 Priestmead First School
84004 21 1.163 Belmont Offered

nearest Elmgrove/Priestmead
33 84083 1 0.708 West Lodge First and Middle School

84083 2 0.825 St.John Fisher  First and Middle School
84083 3 0.836 Pinner Park First School
84083 4 1.397 Cannon Lane First School
84083 21 1.212 Cedars Offered

nearest Pinner Wood/West Lodge
34 84164 1 1.084 Whitchurch First School

84164 2 1.129 Stanburn First School
84164 3 3.606 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
84164 4 2.667 Pinner Park First School
84164 21 0.130 Kenmore Park Offered

nearest Kenmore Park/Glebe
35 84252 1 0.550 Grimsdyke First & Middle School

84252 2 0.780 Pinner Park First School
84252 3 1.065 West Lodge First and Middle School
84252 4 1.686 Marlborough First & Middle School
84252 21 0.930 Cedars Offered

nearest Grimsdyke/Cedars/Pinner Wood
36 84259 1 0.570 Vaughan First & Middle School

84259 2 0.908 Cannon Lane First School
84259 3 1.049 West Lodge First and Middle School
84259 4 0.961 Newton Farm First & Middle School
84259 21 0.793 Grange Offered

nearest Vaughan/Longfield

36



37 84473 1 1.627 Cannon Lane First School
84473 2 2.201 West Lodge First and Middle School
84473 3 3.310 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
84473 4 0.703 Newton Farm First & Middle School
84473 21 0.375 Welldon Park Offered

nearest Welldon Park/ Roxeth Manor/Earlsmead
38 84478 1 0.297 Marlborough First & Middle School

84478 2 0.591 Vaughan First & Middle School
84478 3 0.514 Norbury School
84478 4 0.706 Pinner Park First School
84478 21 0.652 Whitefriars Offered

nearest Marlborough/Norbury/Vaughan
39 84525 1 0.945 St.John's C of E School, Stanmore

84525 2 2.870 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
84525 3 3.904 Newton Farm First & Middle School
84525 4 3.945 Cannon Lane First School
84525 21 1.001 Weald Offered

nearest Stanburn/Aylward
40 84537 1 0.365 Vaughan First & Middle School

84537 2 1.018 Longfield First School
84537 3 1.399 Pinner Park First School
84537 4 0.613 Roxeth First & Middle School
84537 21 0.654 Grange Offered

nearest Vaughan/Roxeth/Grange
41 84599 1 0.326 Vaughan First & Middle School

84599 2 0.275 St.Anselm's  Primary School
84599 3 0.808 Marlborough First & Middle School
84599 4 0.438 Norbury School
84599 21 0.629 Grange Offered

nearest Vaughan/Norbury/Grange
42 84635 1 0.398 Marlborough First & Middle School

84635 2 0.773 Norbury School
84635 3 0.930 Priestmead First School
84635 4 1.461 Stanburn First School
84635 21 0.226 Whitefriars Offered

nearest Whitefriars/Marlborough
43 84694 1 1.581 St.George's Primary  School, Harrow

84694 2 1.750 St.John Fisher  First and Middle School
84694 3 1.505 St.Anselm's  Primary School
84694 4 2.895 St.Teresa's First & Middle  School
84694 21 0.015 Roxeth Manor Offered

nearest Roxeth Manor/Earlsmead
44 84700 1 0.667 Priestmead First School

84700 2 1.458 Marlborough First & Middle School
84700 3 2.091 Vaughan First & Middle School
84700 4 1.975 Roxeth First & Middle School
84700 21 1.256 Belmont Offered

nearest Priestmead/Kenmore Park/Glebe
45 84707 1 1.720 Pinner Park First School

84707 2 2.745 Cannon Lane First School
84707 3 0.646 Norbury School
84707 4 1.302 Vaughan First & Middle School
84707 21 0.310 Elmgrove Offered

nearest Elmgrove/Norbury

37



46 84743 1 1.423 St.John Fisher  First and Middle School
84743 2 1.183 St.Anselm's  Primary School
84743 3 2.531 St.Teresa's First & Middle  School
84743 4 3.553 St.Bernadette's  Primary School
84743 21 0.339 Grange Offered

nearest Roxeth Manor/Newton Farm
47 84762 1 0.325 Vaughan First & Middle School

84762 2 0.986 Pinner Park First School
84762 3 1.133 Cannon Lane First School
84762 4 1.283 West Lodge First and Middle School
84762 21 0.649 Grange Offered

nearest Longfield/Vaughan/Grange
48 84765 1 1.649 St.John Fisher  First and Middle School

84765 2 1.856 St.George's Primary  School, Harrow
84765 3 1.668 St.Anselm's  Primary School
84765 4 1.220 Cannon Lane First School
84765 21 0.191 Roxeth Manor Offered

nearest Roxeth Manor/Newton Farm
49 84891 1 0.749 Pinner Park First School

84891 2 1.993 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
84891 3 1.921 Cannon Lane First School
84891 4 1.795 West Lodge First and Middle School
84891 21 0.562 Whitefriars Offered

nearest Grange/Vaughan
50 84906 1 0.505 Cannon Lane First School

84906 2 0.449 Newton Farm First & Middle School
84906 3 1.725 Pinner Park First School
84906 4 2.559 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
84906 21 0.927 Grange Offered

nearest Roxbourne/Newton Farm
51 84940 1 1.008 St.Anselm's  Primary School

84940 2 0.826 St.George's Primary  School, Harrow
84940 3 1.912 St.John Fisher  First and Middle School
84940 4 0.524 Roxeth First & Middle School
84940 21 0.248 Welldon Park Offered

nearest Welldon Park/Roxeth/Earlsmead
52 84941 1 1.771 St.Anselm's  Primary School

84941 2 1.630 St.George's Primary  School, Harrow
84941 3 2.130 St.John Fisher  First and Middle School
84941 4 3.570 St.Joseph's  Primary School
84941 21 0.185 Earlsmead Offered

nearest Earlsmead/Roxeth Manor
53 84953 1 0.284 Marlborough First & Middle School

84953 2 0.539 Vaughan First & Middle School
84953 3 0.792 Pinner Park First School
84953 4 2.057 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
84953 21 0.708 Whitefriars Offered

nearest Marlborough/Vaughan/Pinner Park
54 85001 1 1.312 St.John Fisher  First and Middle School

85001 2 1.829 St.Teresa's First & Middle  School
85001 3 0.675 West Lodge First and Middle School
85001 4 1.249 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
85001 21 0.204 Pinner Wood Offered

nearest Pinner Wood/West Lodge

38



55 85034 1 0.971 Stanburn First School
85034 2 1.175 Whitchurch First School
85034 3 1.349 Pinner Park First School
85034 4 0.944 Priestmead First School
85034 21 0.169 Weald Offered

nearest Weald/Belmont
56 85102 1 1.529 Grimsdyke First & Middle School

85102 2 1.535 Stanburn First School
85102 3 2.653 West Lodge First and Middle School
85102 4 1.034 St.John's C of E School, Stanmore
85102 21 0.699 Weald Offered

nearest Weald/Cedars
57 85114 1 0.309 Vaughan First & Middle School

85114 2 0.959 Pinner Park First School
85114 3 1.290 West Lodge First and Middle School
85114 4 2.116 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
85114 21 0.668 Grange Offered

nearest Vaughan/Longfield/Grange
58 85174 1 1.048 Newton Farm First & Middle School

85174 2 2.222 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
85174 3 1.434 West Lodge First and Middle School
85174 4 1.276 Cannon Lane First School
85174 21 0.587 Grange Offered

nearest Vaughan/Longfield/Grange
59 85183 1 2.029 St.Anselm's  Primary School

85183 2 1.917 St.George's Primary  School, Harrow
85183 3 1.635 Roxeth First & Middle School
85183 4 0.814 Newton Farm First & Middle School
85183 21 0.116 Earlsmead Offered

nearest Earlsmead/Roxeth Manor
60 85184 1 0.908 Pinner Park First School

85184 2 0.396 Marlborough First & Middle School
85184 3 1.963 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
85184 4 2.120 West Lodge First and Middle School
85184 21 0.157 Whitefriars Offered

nearest Whitefriars/Marlborough
61 85187 1 1.035 Newton Farm First & Middle School

85187 2 1.307 Pinner Park First School
85187 3 1.493 Cannon Lane First School
85187 4 1.744 West Lodge First and Middle School
85187 21 0.394 Grange Offered

nearest Vaughan/Grange
62 85188 1 0.716 Marlborough First & Middle School

85188 2 1.258 Stanburn First School
85188 3 0.933 Priestmead First School
85188 4 1.454 Whitchurch First School
85188 21 0.247 Whitefriars Offered

nearest Belmont/Whitefriars
63 85190 1 1.565 St.John Fisher  First and Middle School

85190 2 1.265 St.Anselm's  Primary School
85190 3 1.404 Cannon Lane First School
85190 4 0.970 Longfield First School
85190 21 0.264 Roxeth Manor Offered

nearest Roxeth Manor/Earlsmead

39



64 85191 1 1.565 St.John Fisher  First and Middle School
85191 2 1.265 St.Anselm's  Primary School
85191 3 1.404 Cannon Lane First School
85191 4 0.970 Longfield First School
85191 21 0.264 Roxeth Manor Offered

nearest Roxeth Manor/Earlsmead
65 85197 1 0.747 Cannon Lane First School

85197 2 0.431 Newton Farm First & Middle School
85197 3 1.465 West Lodge First and Middle School
85197 4 2.128 Pinner Park First School
85197 21 0.708 Roxeth Manor Offered

nearest Roxbourne/Newton Farm
66 85207 1 1.086 Pinner Park First School

85207 2 1.817 Priestmead First School
85207 3 1.945 Whitchurch First School
85207 4 1.146 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
85207 21 0.311 Cedars Offered

nearest Cedars/Whitefriars
67 85236 1 0.793 Grimsdyke First & Middle School

85236 2 0.847 West Lodge First and Middle School
85236 3 1.355 Pinner Park First School
85236 4 1.557 Cannon Lane First School
85236 21 1.605 Cedars Offered SCHOOL OFFERED  IS FURTHER THAN ANY

nearest Pinner Wood/Grimsdyke OF PARENTS 4 PREFERENCES
68 85247 1 0.390 Vaughan First & Middle School

85247 2 1.039 Longfield First School
85247 3 0.432 Norbury School
85247 4 1.351 Newton Farm First & Middle School
85247 21 0.659 Grange Offered

nearest Vaughan/Grange/Norbury
69 85249 1 0.687 Marlborough First & Middle School

85249 2 0.401 Norbury School
85249 3 2.664 Krishna-Avanti Primary School
85249 4 1.144 Priestmead First School
85249 21 1.190 Belmont Offered

nearest Norbury/Elmgrove/Marlborough
70 85250 1 2.786 Grimsdyke First & Middle School

85250 2 0.627 Marlborough First & Middle School
85250 3 1.130 Vaughan First & Middle School
85250 4 0.473 Norbury School
85250 21 1.010 Belmont Offered

nearest Norbury/Elmgrove
71 85262 1 1.587 Cannon Lane First School

85262 2 2.110 West Lodge First and Middle School
85262 3 0.720 Newton Farm First & Middle School
85262 4 0.596 Roxeth First & Middle School
85262 21 0.263 Grange Offered

nearest Grange/Roxeth
72 85265 1 0.855 West Lodge First and Middle School

85265 2 0.730 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
85265 3 1.572 Cannon Lane First School
85265 4 1.283 Pinner Park First School
85265 21 1.523 Cedars Offered

nearest Pinner Wood/Grimsdyke

40



73 85270 1 1.867 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
85270 2 0.985 Priestmead First School
85270 3 2.388 Krishna-Avanti Primary School
85270 4 1.241 Stanburn First School
85270 21 0.285 Whitefriars Offered

nearest Belmont/Whitefriars/Weald
74 85282 1 0.275 Vaughan First & Middle School

85282 2 0.575 Roxeth First & Middle School
85282 3 0.879 Longfield First School
85282 4 1.942 West Lodge First and Middle School
85282 21 0.471 Grange Offered

nearest Vaughan/Grange
75 85291 1 0.285 Vaughan First & Middle School

85291 2 1.178 Cannon Lane First School
85291 3 1.139 Pinner Park First School
85291 4 1.411 West Lodge First and Middle School
85291 21 0.485 Grange Offered

nearest Longfield/Vaughan/Grange
76 85306 1 2.186 Newton Farm First & Middle School

85306 2 0.923 Priestmead First School
85306 3 0.575 Marlborough First & Middle School
85306 4 2.551 Cannon Lane First School
85306 21 0.959 Belmont Offered

nearest Norbury/Elmgrove
77 85308 1 2.138 Newton Farm First & Middle School

85308 2 2.447 Cannon Lane First School
85308 3 1.369 Pinner Park First School
85308 4 0.377 Norbury School
85308 21 0.857 Belmont Offered

nearest Elmgrove/Norbury
78 85311 1 1.760 Cannon Lane First School

85311 2 0.718 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
85311 3 1.056 West Lodge First and Middle School
85311 4 1.497 Pinner Park First School
85311 21 1.655 Cedars Offered

nearest Pinner Wood/Grimsdyke
79 85337 1 0.801 Newton Farm First & Middle School

85337 2 1.264 Longfield First School
85337 3 2.344 Pinner Park First School
85337 4 2.370 West Lodge First and Middle School
85337 21 0.206 Welldon Park Offered

nearest Roxeth Manor/Welldon Park
80 85347 1 1.429 St.John Fisher  First and Middle School

85347 2 0.903 West Lodge First and Middle School
85347 3 0.961 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
85347 4 1.687 St.Teresa's First & Middle  School
85347 21 0.082 Pinner Wood Offered

nearest Pinner Wood/Grimsdyke
81 85357 1 0.922 Roxeth First & Middle School

85357 2 0.806 Marlborough First & Middle School
85357 3 0.491 Norbury School
85357 4 2.699 Krishna-Avanti Primary School
85357 21 1.323 Grange Offered

nearest Elmgrove/Norbury

41



82 85365 1 0.929 Stanburn First School
85365 2 0.787 Priestmead First School
85365 3 1.128 Whitchurch First School
85365 4 2.106 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
85365 21 0.245 Belmont Offered

nearest Belmont/Weald
83 85426 1 0.586 Grimsdyke First & Middle School

85426 2 0.887 Pinner Park First School
85426 3 1.635 Cannon Lane First School
85426 4 0.936 West Lodge First and Middle School
85426 21 1.105 Cedars Offered

nearest Grimsdyke/Pinner Wood
84 85434 1 1.930 Pinner Park First School

85434 2 0.507 Newton Farm First & Middle School
85434 3 0.819 Longfield First School
85434 4 3.051 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
85434 21 0.212 Grange Offered

nearest Grange/Roxeth Manor
85 85448 1 1.933 Grimsdyke First & Middle School

85448 2 0.718 Cannon Lane First School
85448 3 0.982 Newton Farm First & Middle School
85448 4 0.841 West Lodge First and Middle School
85448 21 1.696 Cedars Offered

nearest Longfield/Cannon lane
86 85471 1 0.183 Krishna-Avanti Primary School

85471 2 1.208 Whitchurch First School SCHOOL OFFERED  IS FURTHER THAN ANY
85471 3 1.404 Stanburn First School OF PARENTS 4 PREFERENCES
85471 4 4.295 Grimsdyke First & Middle School After allocation, offered a place at Pinner Wood
85471 21 5.277 Earlsmead Offered from the waiting list.  Refused as going private.

nearest Stag Lane/Little Stanmore
87 85476 1 1.679 Grimsdyke First & Middle School

85476 2 2.936 Cannon Lane First School
85476 3 2.473 West Lodge First and Middle School
85476 4 1.414 Whitchurch First School
85476 21 0.204 Weald Offered

nearest Weald/Cedars
88 85490 1 0.517 Grimsdyke First & Middle School

85490 2 0.920 Pinner Park First School
85490 3 1.587 West Lodge First and Middle School
85490 4 2.246 Cannon Lane First School
85490 21 0.577 Cedars Offered

nearest Grimsdyke/Cedars
89 85494 1 1.010 Whitchurch First School

85494 2 0.959 Stanburn First School
85494 3 1.471 Krishna-Avanti Primary School
85494 4 1.296 Stag Lane First School
85494 21 0.515 Kenmore Park/Glebe Offered

nearest Kenmore Park/Glebe
90 85499 1 1.665 Newton Farm First & Middle School

85499 2 0.399 St.George's Primary  School, Harrow
85499 3 2.730 Priestmead First School
85499 4 2.149 Marlborough First & Middle School
85499 21 0.646 Welldon Park Offered

nearest Welldon Park/Roxeth

42



91 85513 1 0.526 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
85513 2 0.970 West Lodge First and Middle School
85513 3 1.689 Cannon Lane First School
85513 4 3.311 Whitchurch First School
85513 21 1.265 Cedars Offered

nearest Grimsdyke/Cedars/Pinner Wood
92 85514 1 0.598 Cannon Lane First School

85514 2 0.818 Newton Farm First & Middle School
85514 3 2.091 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
85514 4 0.897 West Lodge First and Middle School
85514 21 0.902 Grange Offered

nearest Longfield/Cannon Lane/Newton Farm
93 85540 1 0.828 Cannon Lane First School

85540 2 0.467 West Lodge First and Middle School
85540 3 1.500 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
85540 4 0.859 Pinner Park First School
85540 21 1.496 Cedars Offered

nearest West Lodge/Pinner Wood
94 85541 1 0.398 Vaughan First & Middle School

85541 2 0.700 Roxeth First & Middle School
85541 3 0.707 Marlborough First & Middle School
85541 4 1.336 Pinner Park First School
85541 21 0.745 Grange Offered

nearest Vaughan/Grange
95 85543 1 0.744 Newton Farm First & Middle School

85543 2 2.442 West Lodge First and Middle School
85543 3 1.777 Cannon Lane First School
85543 4 2.042 St.John Fisher  First and Middle School
85543 21 0.314 Roxeth Manor Offered

nearest Earlsmead/Roxeth Manor
96 85556 1 1.011 West Lodge First and Middle School

85556 2 0.565 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
85556 3 0.810 Pinner Park First School
85556 4 1.721 Marlborough First & Middle School
85556 21 0.993 Cedars Offered

nearest Grimsdyke/Cedars/Pinner Wood
97 85560 1 2.024 Newton Farm First & Middle School

85560 2 2.846 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
85560 3 1.144 Priestmead First School
85560 4 0.687 Marlborough First & Middle School
85560 21 1.814 Cedars Offered

nearest Norbury/Elmgrove
98 85563 1 1.074 Whitchurch First School

85563 2 4.166 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
85563 3 4.990 Cannon Lane First School SCHOOL OFFERED  IS FURTHER THAN ANY
85563 4 1.274 Stanburn First School OF PARENTS 4 PREFERENCES
85563 21 5.264 Earlsmead Offered Offered and accepted Little Stanmore

nearest Little Stanmore/Stag Lane from the waiting list.
99 85572 1 0.281 St.Bernadette's  Primary School

85572 2 0.956 Priestmead First School
85572 3 1.399 Whitchurch First School
85572 4 1.441 Stanburn First School
85572 21 0.435 Kenmore Park/Glebe Offered

nearest Kenmore Park/Glebe

43



100 85588 1 1.704 Whitchurch First School
85588 2 0.781 Priestmead First School
85588 3 1.635 Stanburn First School
85588 4 2.088 Pinner Park First School
85588 21 1.185 Belmont Offered

nearest Elmgrove/Priestmead
101 85597 1 0.106 Krishna-Avanti Primary School

85597 2 0.972 Whitchurch First School
85597 3 1.162 Stanburn First School
85597 4 1.515 Priestmead First School SCHOOL OFFERED  IS FURTHER THAN ANY
85597 21 5.059 Earlsmead Offered OF PARENTS 4 PREFERENCES

nearest Little Stanmore/Stag Lane School place not required - going private
102 85600 1 0.593 Whitchurch First School

85600 2 1.673 St.John's C of E School, Stanmore
85600 3 3.750 Cannon Lane First School
85600 4 2.313 Pinner Park First School
85600 21 0.447 Kenmore Park Offered

nearest Kenmore Park/Glebe
103 85603 1 0.749 West Lodge First and Middle School

85603 2 1.449 Cannon Lane First School
85603 3 0.764 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
85603 4 0.887 Pinner Park First School
85603 21 1.225 Cedars Offered

nearest Pinner Wood/West Lodge
104 85617 1 0.116 St.Anselm's  Primary School

85617 2 0.468 Roxeth First & Middle School
85617 3 0.484 Vaughan First & Middle School
85617 4 0.513 Norbury School
85617 21 0.660 Grange Offered SCHOOL OFFERED  IS FURTHER THAN ANY

nearest Roxeth/Vaughan/Norbury OF PARENTS 4 PREFERENCES
105 85621 1 1.625 Krishna-Avanti Primary School

85621 2 1.352 Whitchurch First School
85621 3 0.588 Priestmead First School
85621 4 1.379 Stag Lane First School
85621 21 1.181 Belmont Offered

nearest Belmont/Weald/Priestmead
106 85635 1 1.036 Vaughan First & Middle School

85635 2 0.680 Elmgrove First School
85635 3 0.491 Norbury School
85635 4 0.806 Marlborough First & Middle School
85635 21 1.323 Grange Offered SCHOOL OFFERED  IS FURTHER THAN ANY

nearest Norbury/Elmgrove OF PARENTS 4 PREFERENCES
107 85687 1 0.834 West Lodge First and Middle School

85687 2 0.741 Grimsdyke First & Middle School
85687 3 1.552 Cannon Lane First School
85687 4 1.269 Pinner Park First School
85687 21 1.519 Cedars Offered

nearest Pinner Wood/Grimsdyke
108 85698 1 1.083 Roxbourne First School

85698 2 0.675 Newton Farm First & Middle School
85698 3 0.651 Vaughan First & Middle School
85698 4 0.634 Roxeth First & Middle School
85698 21 0.068 Grange Offered

nearest Grange/Roxeth

44



109 85700 1 0.626 Marlborough First & Middle School
85700 2 1.034 Vaughan First & Middle School
85700 3 1.080 Roxeth First & Middle School
85700 4 0.396 Norbury School
85700 21 1.097 Belmont Offered SCHOOL OFFERED  IS FURTHER THAN ANY

nearest Norbury/Elmgrove OF PARENTS 4 PREFERENCES
110 85889 1 0.984 Newton Farm First & Middle School

85889 2 1.889 Cannon Lane First School
85889 3 3.064 Glebe First & Middle School
85889 4 2.423 West Lodge First and Middle School
85700 21 0.283 Welldon Park Offered

nearest Welldon Park/Roxeth/Earlsmead

45



46

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 14/07/2009 Harrow Admissions Forum 6.15

	7 Changes to Requirement for Proof of Address
	8 Flexible Entry to Reception
	9 INFORMATION REPORT - Harrow Admission Forum Working Party on Nursery Admissions
	10 INFORMATION REPORT - Admissions Policy and Location of School Gate
	11 INFORMATION REPORT - New Requirement to Co-Ordinate Primary and In-Year Admissions
	12 INFORMATION REPORT - Applicants Not Offered Any of Their Four Preferred Schools for September 2009
	App1Fourprefinfoversion1


